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December 29, 2016 
 
Vincent G. Bradley 
Chairman 
New York State Liquor Authority 
80 S. Swan Street, 9th Floor 
Albany, New York 12210  
 
Re: MHI 510 W42 Hotel LLC (Owner)/Cachet Hotel Group Limited (Manager) 
 d/b/a Cachet Boutique and Eden Restaurant 
 508-510 West 42nd Street (10/11 Avenues) 
  
Dear Chairman Bradley: 

 
Manhattan Community Board 4 (MCB4) recommends denial of the application for a 
new On-Premise Liquor License by MHI 510 W42 Hotel LLC (Owner)/Cachet Hotel 
Group Limited (Manager) d/b/a Cachet Boutique and Eden Restaurant, 508-510 
West 42nd Street (10/11 Avenues).  Given the applicant’s refusal to agree to 
limitations on the use of the problematic outdoor space at this location -- limitations 
necessary to preserve the reasonable quality of life for hundreds of residents whose 
apartments surround this location and its outdoor space; the extremely troubled 
history of community complaints and criminal activity regarding this location; and 
the additional noise, traffic, and congestion this establishment would bring to the 
area; granting a new On-Premise license to the present applicant would not 
serve, and would be contrary to, the public interest.   
 
This establishment falls within the 500 foot rule as there are at least 9 (nine) OP liquor 
licenses within 500 feet of this address (per the SLA’s website).  The present application 
seeks a license that encompasses room service to approximately 105 hotel guest rooms, 
three separate outdoor spaces with two stand-up bars, and a hotel restaurant with 31 
tables and 120 seats (collectively, the “Hotel/Restaurant”).  In addition, the same owner 
and manager are also applying for a separate license for a larger club space at this 
location, which the applicant refers to as the “Playboy Supper Club.”  Because the 
Playboy Supper Club application presents several independent issues, that application is 
the subject of a separate letter to the SLA from MCB4, although the cumulative impact 
on the community of both proposed licenses should be considered together.  
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The proposed use of the three outdoor spaces at this location -- labeled the “Great 
Lawn,” the “Spa Atrium,” and the “Bamboo Garden” on applicant’s floor plans 
accompanying their Stipulations Application (a copy of which is attached) -- is of 
particular and urgent concern to the community.  These spaces are located in an 
inner courtyard that is partially surrounded by the applicant’s premises, but is also 
surrounded by two sizeable residential buildings containing over 500 apartments.   
The disturbances caused by the use of these outdoor spaces are not speculative.   At 
the December 13, 2016 meeting of the Business Licenses and Permits (BLP) 
Committee of MCB4, at which this application was considered, representatives of 
both buildings described how music, amplified sound, and crowd noise from 
patrons consuming alcoholic beverages in the outdoor spaces at issue severely 
compromised their residential quality of life.  Bothersome noise was heard by 
residents as high as the 28th floor in an adjoining building, and the noise was 
equally disturbing and disruptive during the day as it was at night. 
 
This location previously operated as the Out NYC Hotel (License No. 1257280), with 
the club space operating as at the XL Dance Bar LLC (License No. 1248373) with a 
capacity of 650 people.  From the time of their opening, those establishments caused 
major issues for the community, including (as reported by the community) noise 
from the hotel’s outdoor spaces disturbing the residents in hundreds of apartments 
that overlook these outdoor spaces; inebriated patrons of the club space found 
passed out on the neighboring sidewalks and even in the lobbies of nearby 
residential buildings; increased traffic; and pedestrian congestion with lines of 
people waiting to enter the club and smokers and noisy patrons clogging the 
sidewalks.   
 
Of equal concern, the police have informed us of dramatic increases in criminal 
activity and liquor violations at this location, with 32 police incidents in 2016 alone.  
(A copy of the police summary of these incidents is attached.)  An important factor 
in assessing whether the granting of a new license would be in the public interest 
under the 500 Foot Rule is the “history of liquor violations and reported criminal 
activity at the proposed premises.”  Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) Law Sec. 
64(6-a)(3).  According to information from the police, criminal incidents have 
occurred in both the hotel and the club spaces.  For example, in 2016 alone, there 
were at least four reported incidents of robbery or larceny in the hotel rooms at this 
location; incidents in the club space or the surrounding public areas included 
assault, larceny, and harassment, as well as police summons for violations such as 
prohibited sales to a minor, failure to control crowd, and disorderly premise.  
Although the present applicant has represented that there is no connection between 
the applicant and the prior owners or managers, the troubled history at this location 
remains highly relevant, with no guarantee that the problems will cease. 
 
Other factors also support the conclusion that a new license here would not be in 
the public interest.  As discussed above, these premises have demonstrably caused a 
dramatic increase in noise levels and disorderly conduct in the neighborhood.  In 
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addition, granting this license will not add anything new to the neighborhood.  
Within a block and a half of these premises, there are two other hotels with licensed 
restaurants and significant bar/lounge spaces: the Yotel Hotel, almost across the 
street at 570 Tenth Avenue (at 42nd Street) and the soon-to-open Pod Hotel at 400 
West 42nd Street (at Ninth Avenue) (whose application is pending before the SLA). 
 
Particularly troubling with respect to this application is the cavalier attitude that 
this applicant has shown toward the community and its concerns.  This applicant 
first appeared before the BLP Committee at its November 15, 2016 meeting, 
represented by two executives from the Cachet Hotel Group, which we were 
informed would be the managers of these premises.  After hearing the community’s 
concerns and after over an hour of discussion with the BLP Committee, those 
representatives agreed to and signed a series of stipulations that would limit the use 
of the outdoor spaces at the Hotel/Restaurant in order to ameliorate the 
community’s concerns.  A copy of the Stipulations Application, signed by the 
applicant, is attached.  Based on these stipulations, the BLP Committee on November 
15 voted to recommend approval of this application to the full MCB4 Board. 
 
On December 7, 2016 -- the day this application was to be considered by the full 
MCB4 Board -- the lawyer for the applicant informed MCB4 that the “owner” of the 
proposed establishment could not agree to the stipulations, stipulations to which 
their management team had agreed in writing on November 15.  Seeing no other 
alternative, MCB4 asked the applicant to return to the BLP Committee at its 
December 13 meeting to again discuss the application.  On December 13, after an 
extensive airing of the community’s concerns and another discussion lasting over an 
hour -- the applicant refused to confirm their agreement to the prior stipulations or 
to agree to any limitations on their use of the outdoor spaces.  Accordingly, the BLP 
Committee on December 13 voted to recommend that the application be denied. 
 
For the reasons stated above, MCB4 requests that the present application be 
denied.1 
 
If the SLA were to consider granting this Hotel/Restaurant application, MCB4 
believes that it is essential for the community’s protection that any license be 
subject to all the conditions outlined in the attached Stipulations Applications and, 
in particular, the conditions regarding the use of the establishment’s outdoor spaces 
to which the applicant’s management team agreed on November 15.  Those 
stipulations are set out on page 7 of the attached Stipulations Application and are 
summarized here for convenience: 
 

• The space labeled the “Great Lawn” on the applicant’s submitted floor plans will 
be covered with a retractable roof that, when closed, will completely enclose the 

                                                        
1  This letter is subject to ratification at its Full Board meeting on Wednesday, 
January 4, 2017.  
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Great Lawn space.  This retractable roof will be fully closed for any scheduled or 
planned event at which alcohol is served. 
 

• There will be no music (live or amplified) or amplified sound of any kind in the 
Great Lawn space unless the retractable roof is fully closed. 

 
• There will be no alcohol service or consumption in the spaces labeled “Spa 

Atrium” and “Bamboo Garden” on the applicant’s submitted floor plans.  In those 
outdoor spaces, there will be background music only. 
 

• All scheduled or planned events in any outdoor space will finish no later than 10 
p.m. on Sundays through Thursdays and 11:00 p.m. on Fridays and Saturdays. 

 
Thank you for your attention and cooperation with this application. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
                                                        [Signed on 12/29/16]                  [Signed on 12/29/16] 

Delores Rubin 
Chair 
 

Burt Lazarin 
Co-Chair 
Business Licenses & Permits 
Committee  

Frank Holozubiec 
Co-Chair 
Business Licenses & Permits 
Committee  

 

ENCLOSURE 
 
cc: Hon. Brad Hoylman, State Senate 

Hon. Richard Gottfried, State Assembly 
Joseph Levey, Esq. 








































